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The “Hail” and farewell Days
of the Railroad

y railroading, in our country, dates from
March 3, 1853 when Jefferson Davis, Secretary of War,
was authorized by Congress to make a survey to find the
most practical and economical route from the Mississippi
River to the Pacific coast. This proved to be no easy task
and took years to accomplish.

Knowing the dangers of the ““Overland Trail’ through
the Rockies and over the barren plains’ country, the ma-
jority of those assigned to the work advocated a more
southernly route.

This suggestion caused a flurry of excitement in the
San Diego Bay area and a group of Old Town citizens
organized a local railroad company under the pretentious
name of the “San Diego, Gila, Southern Pacific 8 Atlantic
Railroad Company™ whose western terminal would be at
Old Town and which would reach the Colorado River near
the mouth of the Gila. This road was planned to meet the
railroad which they believed would be built across the
southern part of the country. 8 )

They intended to cut the soft cottonwood for ties
until a more substantial wood could be obtained. AL

So began a railroad cycle in San Diego County The
Road received a grant of 9,000 acres of Pueblo land from
San Diego County. It was on the basis of this land grant
that the Southern Pacific was able to keep a toe-hold in
San Diego County though it was many years before it
acquired entrance into San Diego City proper.

The government surveyors met obstacles. In the south-
ern portion of the country the rivers proved to be wider
and more turbulent, Indians as numerous and there was a
law at that time which prohibited trespassing on the lands
of Indian Territory, so they resumed study of the northern
route. %

n By following the buffallo wallows across .thc pla}qs.
taking advantage of the miles of flat Wyoming prairie,
using the advice of friendly Indians, and of the Mountain

Cross-countr
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med the hills in their fur-trapping expedi-
nv([);ns “:L]eo (r?(::mmx'uee reported in favor of the northern
route, most of it being along the Overland Traxl.. Another
major advantage was the coal which was accessible prac-
tically all along the way.

Congress allotted land and money to the backers o_f a
railroad project and a road. now known as the Union
Pacific, was completed in 1869 when the last spike, con-
necting the Pacific Division with the Central Division was
driven on May 10 at Promontory, Utah.

In San Diego, interest waned as the northern road was
planned and with the Civil War claiming everyone's at-
tention plans for construction were dropped. The first
railroad disappointment had come to the Bay Area.

Though the company became the Southern Pacific, San
Diego people called it the ‘Gila’.

Frank Kimball makes but one reference to it, “Treasur-
er still fighting with the Gila people over taxes.” The
Company retained their land grant and they sometimes
paid taxes on it. The School Board of the County looked
forward to receiving some Southern Pacific delinquent tax
money, to help with their school problems.

Fer many years the Railroad Company had a standing
offer of, ““$65,000 for Roseville, Mr. Roses’ magnificent
garden property at the entrance of the Bay.” It was the
railroad’s intention to have a wharf there if they built a
line to San Diego and their terminal had to remain in Old
Town.

In January of 1868, when Frank Kimball first came
to 'San Dxego County, it was quite a barren place. He de-
scribes it, “T had but one American nej
Capt. Wilcox) for 750 mil
for 200 miles east and only
Inﬂlan.. Mcxma_n, negro village called Old Town and all

',h’s mixture with the few {-\mencans made up the popula-
tion of about 400 persons.”’

t this time Alonzo Horton had purchased six 160-
;Clieésloéserraoctra:lmg 960 acres, for the sum of $2544 o

In June of 1868 the Kimbal

I Brothers return
f e
permanent residents, o

baving purchased the “Nationa]

—_—0 —

Ranch”, consisting of 26,631
sum of $30,000.

In 1869, the San Diego Union which Frank Kimball
helped finance, described the work already accomplished
by the brothers on the Ranch, listing “many extensive
improvements, a wharf being planned and the Kimball's
are now working on a dirt road 10! > miles in length from
National City to Jamul Valley which they hope will reach
Fort Yuma.”

In July of 1869 General Mortimer Hunter, acting in
the name of General Fremont, who was well acquainted
with Southern California, came in the interests of the
Memphis and El Paso Railroad Company, another pre-war
company organized in 1858 which remained dormant
during the war years. In 1868, the San Diego Union said,
"“Southern Pacific (Gila) with El Paso interests will build
out from San Diego in 90 days.”

Los Angeles was negotiating for a railroad and the
San Diego people were worried. “Will we have this ‘n_».\;i
along our 32nd parallel or is it going to be along the -nl‘ﬂ]
(Los Angeles) " they asked General Hunter on May X
1869. ‘ ; )

On July 4th Frank writes, ° Railroad Committee CJTB
out for a subscription of land from Kimball Brothers !
acres.”” The Hunter-Fremont group had decided on the
32nd parallel for their road. 2

This gave Frank an idea and two days l.\[crkhc ml\;l

g - e : Sl

on General Hunter in San Diego. “Had a lon‘g mbl'doc?f r;(xm
road matters and I laid out my course. Made a bid of 0
bIé‘lﬂ of land to the Memphis and El Paso }{Z\\l{k“\;]d
cks a I :
Company to come to the Bay of San Diego and a further
bid of 500 blocks for a terminus. R

San Diego also gave land and bonds to support the ne
railroad. ;

Sept. 18, 1869 was an important day for our Soutb

e ¢ fficial e down on the steamship
land, for many officials lcabm‘_ T e svadne

(2 join in the celebration of the
g:ll:gfg t_Ithm were well known names aénong tlthgrO\tlli-

: : y ewart and Generals Hunter,
Frank lists them; Governor Stewart ¥,
Sedgwick and Rosecrans, also Major General Stonem

and 94/100 acres for the
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all were members of the Memphis and El Paso Railroad
any. ;

Com(?apr);in Johnson, the congenial skipper of the Orizaba
was Master of Ceremonies for the speeches, after a dinner
which included oysters from the oyster beds which Mr.
Noltage planted at the head of the Bay. There was a
parade with band, and a general entertainment for the
visitors. 2 %

The San Diego Union cautioned its readers, Remgm-

ber, these people are our guests and must not be fleeced.

Frank writes that after the reception the guests came

to National City where they inspected the site for a wharf.

With the railroad a certainty, the Bay area prepared
for the expected influx of people. In National City, Frank
Kimball built a hotel across the National Road from hIlS
home. He speaks of it as the “Tipton House”, the only
Swiss style house built in National City, and mentions its
cost as $960. A “Railroad House”” was built, with doors
purchased from ‘Hathaway’ that cost $53.40. 870

r. Theron Parson, in his memoirs for Feb. 16, 1
tells us: “Railroad engineers locating a road along the
waterfront.”” So the road did get a start, but no further
account of progress can be found until this disquieting
statement was issued, ‘Hunter says we can reach a main
line at some point on the sage-brush, cactus-covered country
near Needles.” ]

When no further work was ordered and the little sur-
veying equipment that had been brought in was with-
drawn. the Bay area accepted the failure of the Memphls
and El Paso to complete its agreement. Disappointment
had come again. : 3

Several years later an investigation revealed A huge
swindle and a gigantic fraud in the handling of the affairs
of the Memphis & El Paso Railroad.”

At the same time the Memphis and El Paso was plan-
ning to build out from San Diego a southern trans-con-
tinental railroad; ““The Atlantic and Pacific’’ was in its
embryo stage.

The proposed route was surveyed by A. B. Gray and
his long report was published serially in the San Dlego
Union. It gives the exact location of every rock and hill

TR

along the Proposed route from the

It camc to the western terminal
San Diego was the Coastal Ra
h\'pr was the more direct route
Saving on the $2,805,000 alloc
portion of the road:
could be crossed

t was with the Atlantic & Pacific
San Diego County railroad men now

Ic_onncction which would put the area on
ine.

Mississsippi River until
then it is vague

Against
ange of mountains

; In its

which would mean a
ated for the California
of course that was if the Coast Range

Railroad that the
hoped to make a
a trans-continental
The A. 8 P. was to

! play a strategic pa r "
Diego County railroad s Y L Lt e

oun tory. It apparenty was backed
by conscientious men for even during the dull days of the

ln}tt‘cr part of the decade of the 70s a report was published,
periodically, showing the road to be in splendid condition,
hn:mc]mlly and progress, though slow, was being made.

When Hunl_cr and the EI Paso group failed to keep
their agreement in 1870 their lands were forfeited.

Then came Tom Scott, the well-liked, fighting Tom
Sco_tt, to bring new hope. Colonel Thomas Scott, of
Phlladg]phu. was recognized as an influential railroad
authority and promoter. After a survey of the San Diego
Bay area he asked for the lands and bonds of the Memphis
and El Paso to further his latest project, the Texas Pacific
Railroad. "

Once again our little National City was to be the
pawn to help bring a railroad to the coast. The Kimballs
gave bond to convey to the Texas Pacific half of National
City and 11,000 acres of adjoining land, all within the
limits of El Rancho.

San Diego also gave 9,000 acres on a verbal agreement.
These were county lands, except the waterfront property
which had been granted the Memphis and El Paso.

Guests of the Kimballs were Senators Harris and Kel-
logg, supposed to be very influential in political circles,
in getting a land grant through Congress. While they were
here they rode up the Sweetwater with Frank Kimball and
selected a piece of land, as a gift to the men. Sen. Kellog
never accepted his acreage.

On the Ranch quite a few sales were made, but most
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small down payment and a mortgage. There was
I)?tagcam;:cy for the I;?m}prm'ements needed on.the Rarfldéﬁ
and now another payment was due M. Pioche o an
Francisco, the wealthy Frenchman who holds the mort-

the Ranch. 3 ’
gagt‘F?:nk left for San Francisco. He says he “Rode into
town with ‘Sister’ "' (as he called his wife), ‘Sister’ walked
out to the boat with me and back alone. I could not go

with her.”

bad‘In Oakland Frank borrowed $1590 for 30 days and
gave his note jointly with Warren, his brother, and then
started out to sell some property. .

He listed his Oaklan% lands; 8th and Washington—
$10,000; San Pablo Road, $10,000; Block No. 2,
$12.000 and so on for a dozen or more entries until they
totalled $57,000.

Then began a long seige of seeking buyers for the
property. “Everybody has to wait until they can contact
someone else. Too bad. Too much property. Received
letter from “Sister’. One disappointment follows another.
Morgan cannot take the Grove street lots. May the Good
Lord help me. This anxiety is cutting my days short.
Seems as though the fates are against me.”’

Day after day Frank finds he has been carting “‘Bilks”
around to see his property.

He was quite desperate, so he made a proposition to
Pioche to take all the Oakland property and clear the
debt on the Ranch. Pioche was not keen on taking over
more property, but consented to take Block No. 2. Frank
gave him the deed and the 1870 payment on the National
Ranch was made. “‘Paid out of my own funds,” writes
Frank. Yes, and he gave a $12,000 piece of property to
satisfy the $6.600 payment on the Ranch.

At a time when he was most despondent and saying,
“Deaz, dear, dear, I cannot stand it, my head swims,”
encouraging news came from the east. The eastern news-
Papers gave an optimistic view on the passing of the T. @
P. Railroad Bil] in Congress which would give land and
a loan to the new road.

He wired Senator Harris for information and the

— 10 —

Senator replied, “Texas Pa
are one of the incorporators.’
... Congress had passed an Act to assist the Texas Pacific
T'hrough Texas to Ship’s Channel in the Bay of San
1ego and granted 18,000,000 acres from the Public

Domain. In San Diego on June 30, 1870 the Bay area
celebrated the welcome news by firing the Old Town
cannon and lighting bon-fires.

At first Frank thought he would go to Washington
but as nothing further developed he changed his plans and
began to dicker around for wharf lumber, Trying to get
Captain Simpson to exchange wharf material for land.
Not succeeding,”” but Captain Dingley took property to
the extent of $1200 and Frank purchased some wharfing,
then left for San Diego.

January of 1871 found Frank Kimball in San Fran-
cisco suffering intensely from the rheumatism with which
he had been afflicted since childhood. ‘Sister’ is with him,
rubbing his sore hip with Chinese oil and. under the
Doctor's orde painting it with Nitrate of Silver. ‘Sister
sails down to San Diego every two weeks to keep in touch
with affairs »

On April 15, 1871 Frank and Warren Kimball left
for the east “Attended the organization of the Texas
Pacific Railroad. 2,000,000 shares subscribed and 10 per
cent paid in half an hour. Mr. Sedgwich tells us the Com-
pany will give all the Hunter (Memphis % El Paso) bond
called for and more, too.” A

Before returning to the west coast the brothers visited
their lonely Mother at Contocook, New Hampshire:
their father having passed away on Feb. 4. Frank wrote
‘Sister” and sent her some May flowers. They may have
been wilted when ‘Sister’ received them, but she kn_cl\' they
were a tribute to their wedding day, April 19, 1857. The
brothers returned by Union Pacific. Ry .

The San Diego Union said, “‘And now it is the Texas
Pacific. The passage of the 32nd parallel Railroad Bill
and the Incorporating of the Texas and Pacific Railroad
gives positive proof of the value of property in Southern
California.”

Scott, speaking to a group in New Orleans told them,

S 1 N
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“You can get on a train right here and go straight through

to San Diego—in 6 years.

Frank sold a piece of his Oakland property and ar-

with a lumber company for additional wharf

lr::'xgl:g and also building material. ‘‘Captain Mills will
to San Diego for $1200.

carry a cargo of my lumber 1 U o

With full confidence in_the coming of the railroa
many families came to San Diego, their men-folk hqpm%
to get work on the western end of the road. In Natlc;cla
City, Frank Kimball rented the Tipton House to Mr.
Lyons, rent to start when the railroad began operations.
The railroad house, with the big doors, was torn down
and rebuilt on National Avenue, making a store 52 by 26
feet. “Gordon and Hazard will pay $30.00 a month and
$15.00 for each tenement above.”” Of course this rent was
to start after the railroad came. 4 1

The work on the wharf progressed satisfactorily, with
Mr. Chessman and Fred Copeland in charge. All the piles
were pulled ashore without a break in the chains.

June came again, and time for the last payment on the
Ranch. The deadline was approaching and it was ‘Without
Grace'. Frank needed a balance of $5000 to make the pay-
ment. “After calling on 8 banks I got the money from
Henry Rogers and have given my land as security; 30 days,
12 per cent and a bonus of $100. Kimball Brothers have
paid M. Pioche the last $6,613.28.” A

On July 8 Frank received the deed but returned it
because it was not properly acknowledged.

In a conspicuous spot near the Kimball Home on
National Avenue the flag pole was set: it was 109 feet
high. On August 12, 1871, when the recorded deed was
returned to Frank Kimball, the Stars and Stripes were
unfurled to the breeze. It was a momentous day for all
the people living on the Ranch: to the Kimballs it was a
day long anticipated: the Ranch of a King had been dedi-
cated 7O and BY loyal Americans.

In August 1871 Frank Kimball had a conference with
Mr. Chas. Crocker in San Francisco. Mr. Crocker was one
of the Board of Directors of the Union Pacific and treated
the promises of the Texas Pacific lightly. Frank Kimball

recounted the conversation, “‘He told me, when I refused

B

to sell to the Central Pacific the 6 mile
‘\vh|ch we own, that I should never live
(M\(lj.rs;n:l:t \E'Sl:i}c'h()l‘lnzs\;}?10‘?\‘5?‘1’ 008k M o
should come into the State - ]rayl}mv( 'l]iml i, N on
our foot on the neck of S"an‘ Di -ur' ]er et B hkw'l“

The wharf was cn‘m l-l-lcflg“‘m\;]" ;I)J(l'l e Ao
helped buoy the (‘h\nn-lplt?k fl ool gy e
) y “hanne 2 flags took 3 yards of flan-

On the last da\"n( August everybody went down
“: see the last pile driven. Reporters from the San Diego
Union newspaper were present and a complete account of
t!)u project was published in the paper of scpl. 14, 1871
Frank tied the first ship to the dock when the Orizaba
steamed up the deep channel.

o railroad activities are recorded until the following
June when Senator Harris and his wife returned to the
Ranch. ‘Sister’ met them at the boat and brought them
out by stage. They rode over the Ranch, enjoyed a trip
to the International Monument, a gay time at the beach
then a wonderful dinner on Mexican soil. Frank was so
lame he could not sail over to the Peninsula with ‘Sister’
and the rest of the partv. Dr. Cooper injected morphine
in his hip to stop the pain and in the evening he felt so
much better he played on their new Chase ¥ Koehler
organ, and the clarinet. They had a ‘Sing’ and for the
second time in his life, played cards: probably the game
of “Seven Up”, which was popular in the 70's.

They took the Senator for a look at the coal mines of
the San Diego Coal Co., up above La Jolla, but the tide
was not out far enough to see the main vein.

The surveying crew arrived. ““The engineers are here,
too. Mr. Shepherd came out in Mr. Horton's barouche and
on National Avenue, near the center of the Ranch we set
and drove the first stake on the survey of the Texas Pacific
Railroad at 2 P.M. on June 22, 1872."” The Senator left
after the ceremony. At first it was the intention of the
surveyors to find a low level road directly east, and it was
planned to have the terminal grounds in the eastern part
of the city.

On July 22, Frank received a telegram from Senator

e YR
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is i Francisco stating the railroad party with

graeglgcg:rsuf‘:s coming fzrgn(li Ogden and would come down

o] the rd. »

on {}S“;S:::,ﬁl’:j g(z:u‘ }[10 Los Angeles the previous week ‘v\"uh
Metta Foster, so Frank went up by stage, met ‘Sister =
the Pico House, welcomed the officials, heard the speeches
and joined the Railroad party when they boarded .[h‘:
California for San Diego. Frank stopped at the Horton
House for an hour and then came home, “So lame I can
hardly walk.” '

In the morning the party came to the Ranch, examined
the wharf and made soundings of the Bay. They drove
to the Wilcox Gardens at La Punta. (Everyone was taken
to La Punta where they could see the southwest corner-
marker of the National Ranch.) From there they drove
around the Peninsula then back to the house for lunch.

The Senator was now on the Board of Directors of the
Texas Pacific and he and his wife had become such s_tead}'
guests of the Kimballs that they were almost copﬂdc{ed
a part of the family. The Senator often left his wife with
the Kimballs while he junketed around on Texas Pacific
business. The couple showed such enthusiasm over the
Ranch that Frank, who had already given Harris 40 acres
from his privately owned land, gave Mrs. Harris 10 acres
and 10 more acres from the lands owned jointly by Kim-

ball Bros.

While the railroad party was here Frank made them
a proposition to divide the Ranch, giving half for
$40,000. He then went north with the group.

Sept. 2, 1872 ““Met Senator Harris at Col. Scott's
rooms at Grand Hotel and signed contract to sell Kimball
Bros. wharf and franchise to John P. Green as representa-
tive of the Texas Pacific Railroad, together with 11,000
acres of the National Ranch which includes about 15 of
National City.”

In San'Diego thgrc was little enthusiasm at the idea
of the terminal in National City. Frank writes, *‘Met C. P.
Taggart and talked over San Diego matters. Said he had
the City Charter so framed that people of the Pueblo
could grant any amount of bonds for any purpose, so they

— 14—

might stand some chance of be
the railroad terminal.”

San Francisco railroad men interested in the Union
Pacific protested at what they claimed to be
use of the term ‘Pacific’, referring to the Texas Pacific

Any rmlrgﬁd using the name is considered a part of the
Union Pacific. The Union Pacific is only a part of the
newly constructed trans continental line. There is the
Great Western Pacific and the new portion, the ‘Central
Pacific’. We hope other railroads will change their names.”

On April 3, ‘72 the Harrises returned They had
written Frank to meet them. He made a couple of rather
boring entries, “Hauling Harris trunks out, 50c.’

Two days later, “Hauling Harris trunks to Horton
House, 75¢.”

During the Harris’ stay in San Diego, on April 21
ground was broken for the first tracks of the Texas Pa-
cific. There were but 75 persons who witnessed the affair,
as no notice had been published. Frank was not present

e was hurt and outraged. Just a few days previous
he had talked to General Dodge, who had assured him
that if the road had to take a northern route all work
shops, foundry and terminus would still be in National
City.

The Harrises returned to the Ranch, but the Senator
had now assumed quite a cynical attitude towards the
Kimballs and insisted the wharf was worthless, as it was
worm-eaten and was worse than Culverwell's wharf in
San Diego. which had been built in ‘68. After the Senator
walked back to the Kimball house Frank _examined the
same piles that had been under the inspection of Harris,
and found them free from worms.

Both the Senator and his wife seemed restless and on
Sunday morning, “Mr. and Mrs. Harris took to their
heels this morning and went all over the plqgc, whether
to avoid our church (which was held in the Kimball par-
lor) or as a direct insult to us, I don’'t know. It was an
insult for them to leave and it would be an insult for
us to ask them to go away; but we shall, soon. ;

It might have been a good idea if they had stayc@‘tor
Church, “Mr. Barnes read his sermon on “‘Hell”.

P L
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Southern Pacific stockholders became interested in the
new road and bought so much stock in the company that
it was said, ““The defunct Southern Pacific has been res-

urrected under the name of the Texas Pacific.”"

Frank writes, “‘Have looked over all the railroad stakes
from our railroad lands to Old Town.” So, when bids
were called on June 7, the Kimballs presented a low bid
that was accepted in 5 minutes. ‘Have figured on the piles
along the waterfront. Put in a bid for 20c per lineal foot
for piles and $12.50 per M. for all lumber needed. Made

bids on all culverts, bridges, guards etc. on the first 10

miles of the railroad.”

Frank Kimball went to San Francisco to purchase
wharf piling, also lumber, bolts and rivets. He arranged
for a lighter, the pile-driver and an engine. He must have
advanced considerable money in his zeal to speed the
building of the railroad. 2 ¥

Along the Bay front 10 piles were driven to re-inforce
the tracks: and that was all! Frank Kimball’s memoirs
which had been brimming over with details of the work
on the new road now switched over to the routine work on

the Ranch. Not one other word regarding the Texas Pa-
cific is on the pages of the book and there is no mention of
“Black Friday", the 19th of September in 1873, nor of
the financial crash that day which stopped all railroad
building, including the Texas Pacific. s
The pinch of the forth-coming financial depression
bhad been felt in Texas and a crew of 45 Chinese who had
been grading the road-bed for the T.P. in that state were
discharged on July 4, 1873. As a group they went to ghe
Central City, Colorado placer mines. The Chinese, unlike
the Cornishmen, disliked underground work.

As in all crises, people of the Bay area imagined work
would be more plentiful elsewhere, and it was said the
population dropped from 5,000 to 1700.

The Senator, now only Senator by courtesy, came no
more to the Ranch. There is one reference to him, ‘‘Sena-
tor Harrls sent an orange tree from Florida.”” Frank, true
to his word, even in adversity, cleared off the Harris ranch,

fenced it in and set it with trees. At one time he sent the
owners a bill for $7.50 for labor and was informed they

T

would like to sell the place. Frank offered them $1000
and “another $1000 when I have it to spare’
cepted the offer.

Aflc‘r Black Friday, when the stock market crashed
and panic spread over the land, the Union Pacific absorbed
another road that had been using the name
before there was a Union Pacific, for the big monopoly
took over the remnants of the San Diego, Gila, Southern
Pacific % Atlantic Railroad which, under the name of the

Southern Pacific, now included considerable Texas Pacific
stock.

Tom Scott had been caught in the financial crash. and
was unable to cover this stock of the Southern Pacific
group who had invested in the T.P., and so found him-
self facing the northern railroad interest. ““The Southern
Pacific will here-after be represented by the manager of
the Central Pacific monopoly.”” In other words, the north-
ern owners of the stock would now have a vote in the
plans of the Texas Pacific.

These northern railroad men, ‘Railroad Barons’ they
called them, were Leland Stanford, Collis Huntington and
Co., and Charles Crocker. They were all firm boosters
for San Francisco. Huntington brushed aside San Diego's
efforts to obtain rail service by declaring, ‘“There shall be
no other Pacific Coast Terminal than San Francisco.”

With the acquisition of the Southern Pacific, the
northern owners were in a queer position. They had
thwarted Tom Scott in furthering the interests of the
Texas Pacific, yet now they had money invested in that
road. If they built the Texas Pacific they would be build-
ing a road that would compete with their own road, and
that they would not do.

‘When the Texas Pacific funds were exhausted and the
attempt to get a loan from Congress thwarted by the
northern interests, the San Diego Union expressed itself
quite pointedly, ‘‘Railroad Buncombe. Hail! and fare-
well.”” Another railroad had vanished in moonshine.

On January 4, 1874 the Texas Pacific was re-or-
ganized and General Rosecrans, in San Francisco at the
time, was very optimistic over the future of the road:
“In spite of the embarassment to the public over the panic

s B

They ac-

Pacific”” long




of ‘73 I am sure
government.”’

At the same time that the TP,

the Texas Pacific will get aid from the

2 was appealing (o
Congress for funds, the northern interests spent huge sums

lobbying against the measure. It was a long drawn-out
fight. The Central Pacific stepped in and asked Congress
to bestow on the Southern Pacific the Land Grants of the
Texas Pacific, and for permission to build out of Texas,
omitting San Diego.

The Bill was said to be a legislative curiosity. It started
with 11 “where-as” which attempted to divest the Texas
Pac!ﬁc of its rights, and the same number of sections trans-
ferring all of these rights to the Southern Pacific.

Then Tom Scott put on his fighting gloves and
proved the Southern Pacific and the Central Pacific were

one and the same company, and that any proceeds that
came to the

Central Pacific should go to the original
stock-holders of the Southern Pacific in San Diego.

“Central Pacific Bill for the Land Grant has fizzled
cut”, wrote Tom Scott, “they don’t want to build any-
where. They just want to beat me and when that is done
they will stop building.”

be Central Pacific Bill to defeat the Texas Pacific

was defeated on April 21, 1876, “The majority of the
Texas Pacific stockholders still maintain the road is com-
ing to San Diego. They are selling their National City and
San Diego lands and advertising their sales as ‘the last
chance to buy cheap property in this New York of the
Pacific.” At the same time the two cities are filing suit to
get the lands returned to them as the railroad has not per-
formed its portion of the agreement.”’

On April 21, 1875 the Southern Pacific, now under
the direction of the Union Pacific, completed a line from
San Francisco to Los Angeles, then on to Anaheim on
May 7. There was dissatisfaction on the timing of the
trains, which reached Anaheim very late at night. It took
20 hours by Stage to reach San Diego, so the stage arrived
in San Diego during the night, also. The road was in ter-
tible condition. Other sources say that Frank Kimball

contributed $8000 towards repairing the road, but he
himself makes no mention of jt in his diary.

18

It was thought the Southern P
original obligation towards San Diego and build on south
Instead it turned towards the east, and on Oct. 30, 1876
was working towards Fort Yuma Said the San Diego
Union. ““The road up north, the Southern Pacific

acific might fulfill its

1S Oone
problem that causes us little concern. Our big problem is
a cross-country railroad. We can still go to San Francisco

by stage in 66 hours, or by boat.”

The eastern papers were deeply concerned over the
monopoly of the Union Pacific. “The Texas Pacific Road
would be a benefit to the southern states and could be
built for 25 per cent of what the Central Pacific cost s The
government of the United States has loaned the Union
Pacific and the Central Pacific millions in bonds and the
people of the country, not the company that used the
money, are paying the interest on that money. ‘ .

Ir: 1876 the San Diego stock—holdcrs‘ of the Texas
Pacific tried to raise funds and interest in the \\'&ﬂlcx:n
terminal but another group, interested in the \'asl\'mv ;xrr\
minal, issued stock for $2,000,000 and found they had
$5,461,000 subscribed giving them sufficient funds to
bring the road to the Colorado River. ] o :

'gl"hcv began building at Marshall, Texas, which do

) q f Iso $320.000 in bonds.
nated 60 acres of land for shops, also § kot
Their land grant was enormous and is said ml 8]?)0\0 oo
4,000,000 acres from the State of Texas and . }
acres from the Public Domain. s A il B Al

By August 9, 1876 there were R o
complétcd out of Fort Worth. ‘Thc.Pathly uns_gn e

i 3 consideration. Tom Sc 2
road will soon come up fgr consider . g e
been re-elected President.”” There it was again: alway
evading their pledges. 2 ) e

Byg this time San D\_cgo Bay area r:n\rfm(% {nhtcnmhu
consigned the Texas Pacn’}c to thcl category o ey
lines that had become will-'o-the-wisps of the past,

e eodi i ] for re-organization.
periodically it was t?sc_;){m u1p87Q gy im0

The years from to - oo
nation Years'' in railroad history ?é\d San Diego Y

i i world. :
was forgotten in the Railroad s e
no cessation of work n

A D i ing these years that the

National Branch; in fact it was during
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most constructive work, without outside capital, was ac-
complished.

During those years Kimball Brothers were engaged in
sheep raising on a large scale: grazing their herds first on
the Town Plat then transferring them to Sweetwater
Valley.

During those days the seeds of Blue Gum trees from
Australia were nestling in the 10-acre Kimball Nursery
en Mr. Swain’s place, until they were large enough to be
transplanted for wood groves in the moist lands along

the Sweetwater. Seeds and trees were planted from far-

away lands: the China Tree, the Japanese Plum, lemons
from Australia, limes and citron from Italy, almond and
filbert trees from England and an olive tree from the Holy

Land.

Those were the days when Frank Kimball set out olive
cuttings by the thousands, the prelude of the olive industry
in Southern California.

Visitors at the Ranch, after meeting Frank Kimball
and bis equally friendly wife, made a point of procuring
rare seeds and saplings on their journeys, to add to the

collection in the experimental nurseries of their erst-while
host.

In 1876 the Railroad Committee in San Diego made
another attempt to make contact with a trans-continental
line, when they organized the ‘‘San Diego % Utah South-
ern Railroad Co.” with intent to meet the Union Pacific in
Utah. Frank paid $2000 as part payment on 200 shares

of the stock. Funds were raised to send Mr. Towne to
New York to contact the Union Pacific, and “Frank Kim-
ball was authorized to draw up a Bill asking subsidies for
our Railroad.” None of the Committee realized the days
of huge land grants were over, and the government was
cancelling them instead of granting more.

Frank Kimball recalls his wedding anniversary, on
April 19, 1876 “19 years ago I was married to Sarah
Cume_r in the town of Henniker, N. H. and all these
years it has been work, work, work not for one of us but
for both. We hope yet to have rest and enjoy in comfort
that V{hxch we have labored so hard to obtain. The years
are going fast, the rest must come soon to be enjoyed.”

OB

Work on the Ranch was ceaseless, and Frank was
finding he had to keep close surveillance over everything
or the sheep wandered away while the herders slept, or his
precious olive cuttings drooped from want of water. There
was always the constant stream of people who came to the

Ranch. Often Frank knew they were out merely to satisfy
their curiosity or for the ride, but he took them around
anyway.

A terrible congestion developed in his head and it
ached, ““More than a man twice my size could bear.”
‘Whenever he was under severe mental strain he would
complain to his diary, but to the outside world he was,
“That jovial Frank Kimball.”

A recurrence of the lung trouble of his earlier years re-
quired a long period of quietness, when ‘Sister’ read to
him and saw that he stayed in bed and not out on Ranch
business. It was at this time, when he was so miserable,
that General Woods came from the east. 4

‘When General Woods came to the Ranch with
$10,000 he wished to invest, Frank first made an offer
of lands lying on the south side of the Ranch, but after
thinking it over he suggested a Land Company to be
formed and in this way responsibility would be shared
and some of the worries shifted from his shoulders. At
Mr. Woods’ rooms we organized the “San Diego Bay
Land Co., myself subscribing to all but 15 shares wh\dcl1
were subscribed by George Kimball, E. C. Blackmer an

Woods, each 5 shares.”
Genflzahlis Land Company eventually became a part of the
San Diego Land and Town Co. of the’ next decade. )

It can be noted the name of Levi Kimball is not\{ry\}:xz-
tioned in the organization of this land company.\w u:
the Ranch was purchased Frank paid, $4000, = ?{;‘C 5
$4000 and Levi, $2000 on the down payment, “‘f \rl\qg
the Ranch in 5 parts. After the d\s_appomtr}wn»[ of l‘lL
Texas Pacific, Levi gave Frank an ultimatum: 1“~\21f1:1 se [
ling his one-fifth of the RanchlforSSZOt,O(l(‘).rThxs id no
include his personal lands up the Sweetwater.

md‘i:dr;:k :H'\d Warren, not wishing an outsider to v:nfgr
i he Ranch, purchased Levi's
into the management of the 5000 S Lt
share, by giving yearly payments of $ each. L
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believed there were better prospects ahead for him as ;

“Land Man"" in San Francisco.

Again, in 1877 the Texas Pacific was re-organized.

Mr. Crawford was sent out to look over the situation in

San Diego County. The idea of bringing in a railroad

by a direct line from the east was still uppermost in many

minds, and so Mr. Crawford was driven over the back
country, to Morena and back by Jamul, where they slept
cn the straw in the barn at Hamilton’s Bee Ranch.

The Railroad Committee met at Horton Hall and a
committee was appointed to welcome Gov. Brown, Vice-
President of the newly organized company. They were
instructed to go to Los Angeles, welcome the Governor
and present a plan to bring the Texas Pacific to San Diego
by way of Yuma and Mountain Springs.

They presented this proposal and said that two of the
Committee would meet the Railroad party at Mountain
Springs after they had crossed the desert, but the officials
refused to consider the idea and the Texas Pacific idea
faced another period of inertia in San Diego County.

An an‘nual report of the Atlantic and Pacific continued
to show._ “The road is in excellent condition, financially,
and nearing the Rio Grande River.
roadIn iclrﬁi'eg J;_rgnk Kimball again stepped into the Rail-

e ’f?ar be);ond c}n]l;sglz)xulctcxrrgt;{tely };)e vgas u;] me}x]ke conces-
o g s County.p ions, he brought the railroad

Will It Be the Atchison Road?

Frank Kimball rig ’ es ) §
and harbor facilities iz:lll\imx'L\cli‘lI:}A:;{dg‘hu \;v:‘ﬂm of failroad
were ll_n' same advantages he h’cli'v:imr I'An(“-“
SanDchgo SR b g eved would de

irect transportation L
necessity to the p(ioumy_ (%:—.m:h:()l\u'::gn "i ‘1; h{f”“ﬂm"' -,
chards were bearing fruit and there \;nm A, an_\:) ﬂ'_,w iy
honey and vegetables that had to be :hi (l“-zin‘\(lks} St
Francisco and east by Union Pacific g}urpa) mf”l to San
delayed in reaching their dcst'matio.n\ et

In 1879 Frank Kimball had a second interview with
Mr. Crocker, the San Francisco railroad ma: mt*x d‘i e
found the battle between the North and ti‘fi énLL.u!:n n')lL—
road, that is, was still on. Mr. Crocker rcpcamd‘his <>£\g{r:a1
sentiments concerning San Diego and added, “‘San Diego
wasn't nice to us so we built around them.” This may
have been a reference to the Kimball's refusal to sell their
waterfront property, which gave the Union Pacific an
ixcus;i to 1turn east after they built the Southern Pacific to

os Angeles.

“It was this statement”’, wrote Frank Kimball, “that
made me determined to go east.”

On March 3, 1879 railroad discussions began again.
“Rode into town and met Mr. Nesmith at his rooms.
Warren, Elizur Steele and myself laid out a plan by which
the Texas Pacific can be built to Yuma if Tom Scott will
advance $50,000.”" There were several conferences in the
office of Mr. E. W. Morse.

““The railroad Committee, Morse (E. W.), E. Steele,
Capron, Higgins, Pierce, Judge Luce, and Warren C. Kim-
ball appointed Morse and Higgins to agree on operations.
I submitted a report and the Committee adopted it without
change and I was elected as agent to represent the City of
San Diego, the Chamber of Commerce and our own in-

These
elop our

terest.”” He was to go to Philadelphia where the main of-

fices of the T.P. were located.

The meeting was written up quite dramatically in the
newspapers. 1t said “When Mr. Kimball maintained he
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Pacific to come to San Diego if
e made he was greeted with a

loud guffaw by his listeners who refused to contribute one

cent towards expenses.
“Mr. Kimball replied, Very well,

could still get the Texas
sufficient inducements wert

gentlemen, I wil]

pay my own way." Which he did, though he had to

mortgage his house.” .
'lghgt may be true, for the Ranch was run ‘on a shoe

string’ with mortgages carrying 12 per cent interest not

uncommon. . 3
There was also a suggestion that Frank might contact

the President of the ‘Atchison Road’ which had come

across Kansas in the direction of Santa Fe.

He went by boat to San Francisco, then across country
by Union Pacific. He purchased his ticket from station
to station, as was the custom, and his meals came from the
basket he carried. It was not an auspicious trip, for he
wrote, “'Not a friendly face in the car.”

At Philadelphia he called at the office of the Texas
Pacific but received no encouragement. Tom Scott, the
“Fighting Tom Scott”, was no longer President of the
Company: sick, and weary from the incessant combats in

life, he was out of the railroad game though it was not
until ‘81 that he passed away.

From Philadelphia Frank went to Boston, stopping
on the way to visit family and friends in Contoocook,
N. H'. where he picked currants, fished and had a swim in

the river. “Brown bread and baked beans for breakfast,
then a long walk, gave me an appetite for string beans,
peas and new potatoes for dinner.’

In Boston he met Thomas Nickerson, President of the
Atchison, Topeka & Santa Fe railroad, and stated his
mission. Mr. Nickerson was far from enthusiastic but

(f)ma!ll_y agreed to a conference on the following Tuesday.
'n T'uesday Frank was told Mr. Nickerson was ill and the
Secretary Ppostponed the appointment.

Back to the American House: Frank spent the after-
goo’n writing a 12 page letter to ‘Sister’, then filled out the
;ys entry in his diary, closing with his usual phrase

When away from his wife, ‘‘Bless her.”
On July 24 Frank chatted with his old friend, Mr., A

—24—

—

b

L. Hitchcock of the Bank of Boston, who became so in-
terested in the San Diego story he introduced him to the
President, “I was introduced to President Burr and en
deavored to call his attention to the need and advantages
of a railroad for our San Diego Bay area. He had nothing
but cold water to throw: ‘“Away ahead of the times.” he
said. “’I asked his attention for just 10 minutes and went
ahead. When the 10 minutes were up he said, “Go ahead.”
We had a good meeting, talked for an hour and a half.
I'm sick, too sick to hold up my head.”

Oh, if only ‘Sister’ had been there to steady those
shaky nerves!

At nine in the morning Frank called to see Mr. Burr
“He locked his door against everyone and we went over
all the ground again, and I so convinced him of San Diego's
interests that he wanted me to see Mr. Nickerson right
away. He went with me and introduced me to Mr. Nicker-
son and I was met by nearly a refusal by Mr. Nickerson,
as he did not expect me until Saturday, but I got his ear
and stayed till afternoon though he said he could afford but
one moment.

“He had every kind of objection but soon began to re-
lent. Locked his doors and called in the Chief Engineer and
one other man. He asked for a proposition under which
they could afford to put surveyors on the field. I told him
I would give it and he said he would call the Board of
Directors together next Tuesday if I wou\_fi have my propo-
sition ready and could explain it myself.”

In the evening Frank wrote a detailed report to the
Railroad Committee in San Diego and telegraphed them
as follows, ““Shall I accept reasonable certainty in Boston
or wait for an uncertainty in Philadelphia?” ;

The answer was, ‘‘Use your discretion but see Phila-
delphia first, if possible.”

pThis required a change in his plans and he asked Pres-
ident Nickerson for a few days time before presenting his
proposition. Mr. Nickerson was annoyed but said they

would wait 10 days. Mr. Nickerson was really very anx-
ious to complete arrangements, for Frank heard him s‘a_y
to one of the stockholders, ‘“We must not let this slip

through our fingers.”
ST



| returned to Philadelphia. Texas Pacifi(
ally a Philadelphia story to him by
Bond, the new President of the Texas

“Tried by every means to get a de
“We can not spend one dollar

Frank Kimball
business was essenti
now. He met Major
Pacific. Frank writes
cisive answer. He assured me,
at your end of the line. A

yThar night Frank made further comment in his mem-
oirs, “I dread to record my convictions concerm(ri\g }I)\h[]m
but I will do so and stand by t!’)e record; he has

e < soul and interest. Stanford

sold out to Stanford, body. 1 Ot
‘runs’ him from El Paso west, and to P})x]adelphla, ]
Frank was quite correct in his suspicions though it was

some months before he was aware of the new deal. At
land Stanford of San Francisco was back-

ing another railroad, the “St. Louis and S'zm Franasc_o"’
which was endeavoring to purchase Atlantic and Pacific
stock. It was this group that was to drive Frank Kimball

to the brink of utter despair. f ’
Many of these same stockholders were interested in

the Texas Pacific, and insisted that its Eastern Division
must resume work on their line from the Rio Grande to the
Colorado River. The Atlantic % Pacific could then use
Texas Pacific tracks to come into California. They intend-
ed to make application to Congress for a million dollar
loan and this merger of railroads would then control
42,000,000 acres of land. Frank Kimball was right when
he said Leland Stanford was running the Texas Pacific
railroad.

_ After seeing Major Bond. Frank wrote his report to the

Railroad Committee and then went back to Boston.

The hot, fatiguing days of July gave way to an even
warmer August. Day after day meant going over the whole
story for those who think they might be interested, “‘It’s
all such a worry. Oh, if Sister was only here. I've been
0 uneasy about my aching head.”

It was Aug. 6, before all details were settled. Besides
the Railroad contract there was a private agreement in
which the Company was to take over an interest in the

San Diego Bay Land Company, that corporation which
had been formed with General Woods. The railroad Com-
pany was to pay $11,500 and receive 1000 shares of stock.

this very time Le
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“At 11)5 on August 11, 1879, “I met by appointment
with the President of the Santa Fe and went over the San
Diego story again with the Board of Directors and showed
them the lands which Frank and Warren Kimball pro-
posed to donate to the company.’

Governor Anthony of Kansas arrived, and Frank retold
the story. It was voted to leave all plans for the proposed
road in the hands of the President of the A.T. % S.F. Rail-
road.

More days of waiting while the Financial Agent of the
company goes into details then says, “We must take hold
of this.”

A toothache for four days brought Frank near to
distraction so he took time out, had the aching member
extracted and a partial plate made, $9.00.

Frank has all his securities listed: also the notes of the
Szan Diego Bay Land Company which the railroad will
take over, “'Another meeting and again I went over the
story and it was the most satisfactory hour 1 have spent =
The Directors want 4 months to decide all questions. It's -
been 2 months since I kissed ‘Sister’ goodbye at San Diego.
Bless her.”

Both the dentist and the optician were on Frank's

daily schedule. His eye was paining him terribly and he

was becoming increasingly nervous, ‘‘More conferences

which means going over it all for those not at previous .
meetings. It's all such a worry. Oh, if ‘Sister’ was only

bere. I have been so uneasy about my head today.

The following night he wrote in his diary,” No de-
cision until 9 A.M. Doubts and fears beyond expression
fill my mind. I have written ‘Sister’. It will be decided
tomorrow.” .

The details of the railroad agreement were soon lined
up and on August 20, Frank carried his personal agree-
ment between the company and himself to the office. At
214 came to the final agreement, securing all and more
than I expected and granting far less. 1 consider this the
most important day of my life and 1, hope in the future it
may not be forgotten. Wrote ‘Sister’. S B

It was September 6 before all papers were sxgmk. y g
uncertainty was over and the reaction left Frank sick, wit
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ore throat he had so often, so he

the s ¢
w day's rest. :
ent that keeps recurring (0 Frank,
“The Union Pacific mopopo_ly is dmv:lﬂg'l‘sl:::uwé“lz
coastwise and river shipping into its net. u

i | for the railroad!
J”“O[nlhie:]c’;)?r:;ené o he contacted Governor

i rated an independent shipping company.
"l:'::‘"go:::ogpissured Frank Kimball. ““The (d:“om-h”
Perkins Steamship Company has no con.n_ecnong irectly
or indirectly with any of the Central Pacific or Southern
Pacific Railway Companies. and vyxll carry frelg'ht for the
Atchison, Topeka ® Santa Fe Railroad in the interest of

ition. - :
wmg:gr.“;';, “L eft Oakland for San Diego. Had a splendid
view of the loop in Tehachapi Pass. It took us 5! minutes

te go through the San Fernando tunnel.” :

At home there was all the excitement of meeting people
and re-telling the details of the trip. It was too much ex-
citement for this courageous little man who often wrote,
“My heart beats against the walls of my chest as though
it would break through.”

One day, “Rode into town and came near falling down
soh};'ez:n,r into the Bank of San Diego and lay down for a
while.

: Sick as he was, he rode over the countryside to Tia-

juana, Otay and all over the National Ranch to ask the

individual owners to subscribe a piece of land that the

deeds could be turned over to the railroad officials when

they came. People were anxious for the coming of the

{' 1:_:’;03‘1' so they willingly gave parcels from their ranch

f materia

The sore right lun i
: 3 g from which Frank bhad suffered
}‘;'en::rfg;l_dbOOd flared up, but “Sister’ is caring for me,”

In a few weeks he w. i i

e was out again, working hard at hi
usual tasks. o o
gt rso Y;Ic(’).’}vonder he often wrote, “'So much to do.
B 'I{_'rha;keasfem railroad men arrived in San Francisco
rsptdsiom sf anned to meet them, so left by ship for San
. stopped over in Los Angeles to attend the An-
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nual County Fair, where he entere 4 .
of grapes, )raish:s n ‘:;:::1::‘ L:r(::d : Drr/{.c—wmmng Sepit
ranches of the i\x_mbnll hm(h;;: (?c‘or‘v‘}\\\\\'\‘:“»m i
F‘mnk, I\“[‘Cl’ the Fair and all the work of \rr;n:‘ ;.,M:d.
display, “My rheumatism was so bad 1 came ho i ead
of g_(?ing to San Francisco.” 3 g ey
: went up to the windmill to oil it. My 3
l(np was not working well and | came near (J{\\;\«:‘Y\Tf‘:‘?
f%“ 50 the ground. In saving myself 1 had the flesh 01\' my
bmgu- stripped off almost all around and the bone broken
etween lh'v: joints. Straightened the flesh as best 1 (;')u\(l\
gnds Sister ;hgir it up in the blood. I have kept it soaked
in 1rits entine ¢ time si g
wou}"\)d 1Isc$cr Sa\:{'\":}vnum all the time since. The ugliest

The President of the Santa Fe arrived in Los Angeles
:‘:And Frank, sore finger and all, took the stage to meet him,
{Al‘San Juan Capistrano made a bed of hay in the bottom
of the stage and slept splendidly till 1 reached the hotel in
Los Angeles.

& 'I(;hc party returned by steamer, “At 8 A.M. with the
PylLS" Ix-{nt and other officials we took our position on the
ilot House to get a good look at the Bay. Made a splendid
landing.
s Dunﬁg the following days the party were guests at the
,orton ouse, then came out to the Kimball home from
where they were taken over the Ranch, up the Sweetwater
River 'whcrc they saw the gorge which was suitable for a
dam site, to the Monument, dinner in Mexico, sail on the
Bay and picnic on the Peninsula; the usual form of enter-
tainment given guests.

The next move was made by San Diego officials, "City
of San Diego took possession of the Tom Scott railroad
lands (TAP'A\ by plowing around the whole tract on the
waterfront.”

As t'hough it was just incidental Frank Kimball in-
serts a bit of expansion, ‘‘Bought the Otay Grant of 7000
(acres). Drew a check for $7000 leaving a balance of
$16.00.
oihBe Santa Fe Company had many railroad interests
in Mexico and while the surveyors were in this locality
they made a trip to Carrizo Canyon hunting for a possible
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short route east. Probably the awesomeness of the gorge
overwhelmed them, for they returned to San Diego and to

seville to see the possibilities for a wharf. ;
o (}"letir:l Roseville ?!?cv returned to National City and

location of the wharf, built by the Kim-
L‘j‘,’f‘;ﬂn"fgyﬂmwmch bad finally succumbed to the depre-
dations of the ‘teredos’ and was being dlsmamlcd: F”_”)‘
sawed up the planks for fence staves around his olive
rursery, to keep the gophers out. while the piling lumber
was taken to San Diego where it was bored out to make
water pipe for the orchards. 1
On Dec. 12, 1879, “After looking over the site of our
old wharf they sounded the Bay: 28 feet at the end of
the wharf and 37 feet in our deep channel. Over to the
Peninsula (Coronado) where we ate our lunch and ’saxle‘d'
back home. Fred Copeland took them back to San Diego.
“Christmas dinner at Warren's was enjoyed with
Messrs. Wilbur and Pratt, who were amazed to find their
repast included guavas, oranges, figs, apples, pears, straw-
berries, olives, almonds and walnuts, all from the Ranch.”
Frank and Warren Kimball, with Elizur Steele, con-
tinued their work of getting other lands deeded to the
Santa Fe and with the Railroad Committee, a Board of
Trustees was set up to legalize the transfer of the T.P.
lands. One half of them were granted the A.T. % S.F.
The two engineers, Wilbur and Pratt remained in the
area for a few weeks longer, during which time the Kim-
balls made them a donation of land: they seemed so en-
thusiastic over the Ranch. As with the Senator Harris deal,
the land was cleared, planted with olive, citrus and fruit
trees and fenced in. Mr. Wilbur paid a portion of the cost
of one house. Time went on and, after a few years, their in-
terest waned and the time came when, without consult-
ing the Kimballs, they deeded their lands elsewhere.
Sixteen years later Mr. Wilbur was to sink to the very
depths of base ingratitude in his dealings with Frank
Kimball.
Wilbur and Pratt left the area in late January, pre-
sumably to report to the Boston office.
The days passed by with no further word from Boston

oh e

and on March 1, 1880 Frank writes in his memoirs,
“‘Something is wrong."

The Railroad Committee received one vague telegram
from the Santa Fe office, asking the people of San Diego
to take no adverse action in regard to railroad lands, re-
ferring, presumably, to the T.P. Grants

After another period of silence it became quite apparent
the proposed railroad was another chimerical fantasy such
as had become so familiar in the history of San Diego
County.
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and now . . .
“It’s the California Southern”

The diary of 1880 begins with the usual routine work

of caring for the sheep and cultivating the olive and fruit
trees in the nurseries but, before it closed, the tranquility
of the National Ranch was to be disturbed when, as a
whole, it became the subsidy of a railroad company.
It was on March 1, that Frank wrote, “Something
is wrong.”” When nothing further was heard from the
Santa Fe officials the Railroad Committee in San Diego
urged Frank to return to Boston. Three of the Committee
subscribed $50.00 each to defray expenses, but Frank told
}hgm the amount was insufficient and he would not go as
in'79 when he paid all bills himself.

He ignored railroad affairs completely and returned to
the work on the Ranch. Meanwhile Elizur Steele of Na-
tional City had not been idle but had raised some money
to send Frank Kimball back to Boston, as Railroad Com-
missioner to deal with any railroad company or any indi-
;1:;.:15 who might consider building a railroad to Fort

. Frank mentions ““Three drafts for $450.00—$50 in
coin and a letter of credit for same amount.”” Some of
;:he rlx(wney was n;))t forthcoming for in a letter of 1886

rank mentions that certain San Die: 1 i
h1m0$1000 on pledges in 1880. G
- Zeya‘}:\/l4' }](880 the San Diego Union wished him
odspeed, “Mr. Kimball leaves for a trip to the east. We
wxs}bhxmv[succcsss and a safe return.”
. Un May 5, he “Kissed “Ma" ]
sax]e_r[i_ for San Francisco. N art, R
here was no need to sto i i
- d p at Philadelph i
gflpr,hgo;\t;he Teé(ag Pacific had merged withpthlea i?:erte]:tl:
antic ifi
g 70 ca”ling a[actl}l:lec'osf(r)"}:mn]f( went at once to Boston.
e i b ices o lebu'r © Pratt, Frank
oo r. E. W. Morse of the Railroad Committee
ﬁid‘an iego, telling him the disappointing news: Mr

erson was no longer President of the Santa Fe. :
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San Diego people were distracted at the news. The
polic_y of the project had been placed in the hands of the
President and with the change of leadership had come a
change of plans.

Frank received many desperate letters from San Diego.
E.W. Morse wrote ““The people are leaving every day and
soon all will be gone who can get away.” Mr. Choate's
letter read, ““If you do not succeed in getting a railroad, in
less than one year not 500 people will be in the City of
San Diego.”

As Frank Kimball found, in his conference with Wil-
bur © Pratt, the ink had hardly dried on the agreement
signed in Sept. of '79 before certain forces began working
cn a plan which stopped the Santa Fe from working out
from San Diego.

In one of the Frank Kimball's diaries there is a list
of the Boards of Directors of railroad companies: The
Atchison, Topeka % Santa Fe; the Atlantic ¥ Pacific: the
Mexican Central, Sonora Railroad Company, Arkansas
Valley and the New Mexico Central and the names are
practically indentical, so it is easy to see how a group under
the name of one company could govern the plans of another
and that is what had happened. A group from the Atlantic
and Pacific bound the Atchison, Topeka and Santa Fe to
build no railroad in California until the Atlantic 8 Pacific
reached Needles, so that was how it came to be “‘Railroad
Buncombe’’ again. ‘Hail and Farewell.” for the Santa Fe.

On May 13, '80 Frank conferred with Mr. Nickerson
and the Attorney for the Atlantic ¥ Pacific R.R., Mr.
Wade. “There was general talk, nothing conclusive and a
postponed appointment.”

“Conferences are postponed and postponed,” writes
Frank. “They say the Board of Directors are in Topeka.
Every excuse possible.”

During the days while Frank is waiting for he knows
not what, Mr. Pratt repays the hospitality he had enjoyed
at the Kimball home, ‘“Took me for a 20 mile ride behind
the fastest horse ever known.” At the Pratt home Frank
played his first game of billiards. “Fuq," was his com-
ment. The daughter took Frank for a ride through beau-
tiful country. ‘‘Nicest ride I ever had except that one when
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we rode to Henniker.”’ referring to that blustery day when

ied his beloved “‘Sister”.
” ng;ntehc 25th of May Frank met”thc A. 8 P. folks,

“Everything quite satisfactory, so far. ;
j\: Wilbur & Pratt’s office Frank made detailed plang

for San Diego railroad lines to exhibit to the A. % P. mag
nates, and also went to the Santa Fe office whcrp he met
the new President of the Company, T. Jeff Coolidge, and
made an appointment with him which proved quite satis-
factory. A

A series of appointments followed: with Ex-Governor

Boutwell where they talked law, railroads and tree plant-

ing: with Mr. Nickerson and with Mr. I. T. Burr, Presi-

dent of the National Bank of North America, and with

Mr. Woodward, confidential advisor of the Santa Fe

Company. In Mr. Nickerson's office they drew up a

proposition to submit to the Atlantic and Pacific Railroad

Company. “After the discussion,” wrote Frank, “T am

to go to New York with the Company’s Attorney and

meet General Winslow” (All the commissioned men in

the Union Army must have gone in for railroading!)
Frank spent the 31st of May writing notes he would

use in New York, when he asked the Atlantic ¥ Pacific

Railroad to commence the San Francisco Division of the

road at San Diego and push it to Needles. “My eyes have

pained me terribly. Do not even dare to buy a paper.”

) ‘Another‘day at Mr. Nickerson’s office arguing the
railroad question, overhauled the whole subject and held
my %ro?\r;d ar‘x,d Tore, too.”

. 1To New York and back again. “The sa :
will the A. & P. build out from San Diego?” -
decis}f)/:,igrwakmng for the A. . P. group to come to some

Old Man o?r:h “1'\5["[ UP‘to”MtA W'ashlr{igton to see ““The
b aibrgied de lountain.” He writes, At Profile House

ard night’s rest. Had to strip the bed and lie

o’n the floor close to the window. The feathers in the bed
s‘::rrl;nliw and not cured and had such a smell I could not
canva;:etdr}t)}g A-hfﬁl P. office with Santa Fe officials and
=i [e;v ole ground again. After lunch with Mr.
ook up the Constitution provisions affecting
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railroad companies in California; and here is where I have
to fight the battle and it looks as though Providence must
step in and lend a hand. I am losing the sight of my good
eye but the bad one is getting a little stronger.”

June 9, “At the Railroad office all day and have
talked out everybody and I'm so tired. I have answered
all their arguments against going to San Diego, open and
above-board with an independent road, and to at once put
Mr. Lockling and Fred Copeland on the San Diego end.
My eye hurts terribly tonight.”

It was necessary to have the Corporation Laws of
California under the new Constitution, and Frank hunted
all over the city for them, going to the Boston Law
Library, to Little, Brown % Co., and to the State Library.
Not finding them he wired A. L. Bancroft to send him
the laws from California.

““My good eye is going, when will this be over?”

The railroad companies lack enthusiasm on the ques-
tion of building out from San Diego so Frank has a
meeting with five men who, he knows are quite frequently
cngaged in ‘big business enterprises’ and infers he will offer
additional ranch property if an independent line could be
built.

He would like some advice on this new plan and writes
‘Sister’, even arranging a cipher. He also writes to Warren.

Conferences start again and Frank takes responsibility
for the lands that had been awarded to previous companies.

“I said I would be personally responsible for any deficit
that may occur in lands held in escrow for the Atchison,
Topeka ¥ Santa Fe, or their assignees: and the Railroad
to guarantee construction of 20 miles before Jan. 1, 1881."

“Another day of arguments. There are some who still
insist the main line should go direct to San Francisco and
not to San Diego at all.” The day drags without any de-
cisive step taken; then the first idea of building the San
Diego % Colorado River Railroad Co. is discarded and the
discussion favors a railroad that will connect with the
Atlantic 8 Pacific. “Of all my railroad days this has been
the hardest on me and I shake as though I had the shaking
palsy. I hope it will soon be over.”
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* at the railroad office with the officals
and I?)ggcn;;('g:ayycr sake’ as grandmother used to say, thag
bt

e Ele}r::ll;is:;nc;; .lJﬂulsyl'gP}usr as Frank thinks everything is

settled, the New York group of ‘rhe Atlantic & Pa;im

think a committee should be appointed to settle relations

between Atlantic & Pacific and the San Diego % Colorado
River Railroad Company which would bf a Santa F.°
line. Frank is desperate and again writes, Something is
somewhere.”’ :

wro&i is right. General Winslow of the ﬁtlannc 54 P1
cific is also President of the new road, the Sar} Francisco
& St. Louis”’, which comprises the New York interests of

the Atlantic @ Pacific. He now withdraws from the San
Diego project. I am abandoned and just where I started
on May 12,” Frank wrote, in his discouragement. !
“Mr. Nickerson sent for me and with tears in his

ey
you. ;
Frank is waiting for an answer from ‘Sister,” but
‘Sister’ is not inclined to commit herself; probably wonder-
ing why Frank wastes his energies on a railroad problem
which never seems to reach a solution. Warren on the other
hand is ready to sanction any project which Frank suggests.
At the Atlantic ¥ Pacific office Frank Kimball called
the five men to another conference. These men, Messrs.
Cheney, Nickerson, Wilbur, Pratt and Burr had implied
they would form an independent company to build the
railroad if sufficient Ranch land was given them to insure
their investment. Frank writes, ‘‘Have finished an agree-
ment to sell Kimball Bros. lands for $100,000 and retain
ownership of one-sixth, divided equally between Warren
and myself. The other owners, each with one-sixth to
be— and”hi mentions the names of the 6 who are at the
conference.”” “'All parties have agreed to conclude business
lgomorrow so I can go home." I can hardly put one foot in
i;os‘:;c‘;(f :)}f)et}(:ih:;;fllm 30 tired.” The $100,000 would be

ik and company, not cash.

nother delay causes further postponement of the land
an;ngemgnt. The men are interested in a shipping line
and a mail steamer is preparing to leave for Mexico. The

e S

es he said, I am beaten, powerless, and I cannot help
0

office is in a hub-bub @
ol ub as freight and passengers demand
Work gets under way ag r 2

“All day long at my hvml;‘limlna«l-“‘(";'i‘v.mnk ol

something else added to their subsidie !j; i all want

el wosidies. Have worked like
S 2 must

Monfiavv Iz& (qmmr%-q them until I'm almost

guments and misunderstandings! [ ast night 1 ¢

my room and dropped on the bed. Did not v kiam\y Ll

midnight, undressed and went to slee {ll\ag.L ‘(‘H i

and yet have not had half enough qu" ; 40 AM

A few months previous Frank Ki 3

brother Levi and said, “Warren and 1[“;:7‘“ i\‘m;:» lm -
to keep the Ranch clear so we would h;\': s;m‘\}; gy
offer for a railroad.” Perhaps he was n‘:arc (hm[“ﬂ ml to
had come when he was to make the sacrifice R
men.(llula}ilzb(iu,t t/\}/l; names but one on our Railroad agree-

I[, oy on_]ourdmrs‘unal agreement.

Wwas on the railroad agreement that the 3 rere

demanding more subsidies. Frank Kimb Vv
I imball first offered
them the mile of waterfront and the 10,000 acres fore-
l;;ol?deddt?J ;he)'l;exas Pacific. Discussions and arguments
ollowed before the contract, far from the original proposal,
was signed. Besides the land offered they asked for “‘such
additional lands as would be required for work houses,
wharves and for appertinances of the line.”

: cher portions of_thc contract gave the company per-
mission to make their own selection from the unsold
portions of National City; also tide land and waterfront
property to the extent of 3 miles.

Starrmg back from the waterfront the railroad was
to be permitted to select such parcels as they desired until
the 10,000 acres of land was made up.

Consxdermg that each block in National City was sur-
veyed to contain 2% acres of ground, the railroad could
select _approximately 400 blocks of choice land, if they
took it all from National City but it was expected that
some acreage would be chosen from Sweetwater and Para-
dise Valleys. They were to have the control of the lower
channel of the Sweetwater River. This was all in the Rail-
road agreement. The personal agreement was with the
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" as they called themselves before the
“The San Diego Land ¥ Town

“Syndicate of Five,
‘Land and Town." Capital was

corporation emerged as
Co.”" better known as

$1,000,000.
Frank left Boston and. as usual, suffered from chills

and fever. The passengers were all sympathetic and gave
him some good ‘cold” medicine. er. Nu‘h-ry\n h.\fl pre

sented him with a pass over all lines of the Santa Fe, but
as he could find no information on train time out from
Topeka, he returned via U. P. 3 ’

At home Frank “Met with the Railroad Committee
and laid out general plans to transfer all subsidies here-to
for made to the AT @ S.F. Railroad Co. to Mr. Nickerson
and his associates. It looks to me as though the Committee
will stand by me under the general terms of the agreement
made by me on July 23, 1880."

Then the legal phases were cared for: the Trust Deed
to the Tom Scott (T'P.) lands, also the Deed to the Rail
road for the 10,000 acres of National City and the private
deed to residue of the Rancho de la Nacion: lands owned
by FAK., W.CK. and L.W.K., jointly, Levi still r¢
tained a share in lands up the Sweetwater.

Following this it was necessary for Frank to ride over
the countryside and explain the new set-up and ask all
individual donors of lands to change their bequests from
the Santa Fe to the new road which, as yet, was without

a name.
Aug. 31, “In town and had the toughest time with
tln" City Trustees. I finally told them to leave everything
as it was or I would retire from the whole matter, Then
I asked them what they wanted changed, but they could
think of nothing."

Before the representative of the Syndicate of Five came
to take the residue of the Ranch from the Kimball Broth-
ers, Frank and “Sister’ made a pilgrimage up the Sweet-
water and, “Sister and I picked out the land where we
will build our new home.” The dream home that never
materialized!

& l’.n'nj‘lmm Kimball, attorney, came to the Kimballs to
straighten out land matters and get a voucher guarantee-
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ing there are no claims against the Kimball property.” H
was no relation of the Asa Kimball branch ;
In the days that follow the Attorney goes over the

e
Town Plat, spots a piece of land xamines 1t, and if sat

isfactory, it is placed on the Syadicate map. This neryous

strain soon brings Frank to the brink of a nervous collapse
as the time draws nearer for the surrender of the deeds tc
the Ranch. There's that old hard kot in his xx\-m‘.\,l; :

Fortunately an event occurs which takes his mind off
of nmm}.\nv things. The First San Diego County Fair
preparations are under way and Frank is working un’ a
larger hall for the display. The Fair was a happy success

Oct. 16. “Have received the Railroad Deed and the
Land Syndicate Deed and have found both substantially
correct. The San Diego Bay lLand Co stock has been
transferred to Syndicate stock."

At this time Frank makes one purchase and contem
plates another. Nov. 22, 1880. "“Bought undivided half
of Janal Ranch from E. H. Gannon. Fred J. Huse has the
other half and both parties agree that no action or im

provement on the Ranch shall be done without consulting
Morse's office he debates

the other party.” Also at Mr
whether to take the Jamacha Ranch lands for $2000, 400
flow

or forfeit the $100 he deposited. He bought

acr
age

rights
Before Benjamin Kimball left town he set a stake at
12th Ave., and 25th Street in National City as the start
ing marker for the Railroad.

Mr. and Mrs. Nickerson came to the Ranch. They
were the guests of the Kimballs and were much impressed
at the advantages of the Ranch. There was a large picnic
for the guests. Fifty-Seven of them drove over to the mussel
beds on the north side of Poirt Loma (Ocean Beach).

Frank's next work was to contact the owners of the
land between San Diego and Riverside and obtain the
Right of Way for the railroad which includes going
through San Vicente Nuevo, San Vicente Viego, Temecula
and the Little Temecula Grants, also the Santa Margarita

Grant (where John Forster lived.)
Dec. 3, “Called on Mr. Pascal and secured Right of

Way from Francisco Estudillo, Have worked hard for the
41
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Railroad Company."' A
road, “The California Sou
ec. 4, “In town earl

name

has beep, given
thern.”

he Ney,

You can imagine ‘Sister’s’ reaction when
her Frank had trudged along, limp;
rough, muddy road with the "Qld H
goal, for the nex|

P’ . as h?q
. “Finished agreeme
PC. Remondino, C. A Chase, a ! H.

es

to town and brouéht m

Frank continued his work on exchanges, This con-

tuting other lands in Nationa] City for the
had to pe obtained by
's store on
him Wwhat

oJlaPaz

z
-0
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find Frank Kimbaly i, §

town, * orking on my equation of Taxes between the

railroad, the Syndicate and the Kimball Bros Took state

ment to Sheriff’s office and ordered

e

& il
B\
on of Prosperity with brighter Promise 2|
or the futyre than they have had for many years,”” 174
Why shouldn’t they be happy? A little man down
Nationa] City Way had just given the bulk of hijs life’s
earnings to bring the railroad to them. During the Year of
1880 he 8ave his time, his efforts and his |
plish this result—and | i

ands to accom-

OPe 1t may not pe forgotten.




The Building of the Railroad

By rights, the year 1881 should h_:lvg becn_ a year of
!hri”ir}:g iicidenrs pycrtaining to the bur[dmg of the Cali-
fornia Southern Railroad to its connection with the At-
lantic ¥ Pacific at Needles, but instead it was a year of
frustration and general awakening as Frank Kimbal]
realized how little business ability was at the command
of those who had signed his Bond.

Much of our information comes from the Frank Kim-
ball letters which he, in 1881, began copying on tissue
paper using the wet process of the day.

riting to an acquaintance in Boston Frank said,

“The Board of Directors of the Calif. So. are 3,000 miles
away but they know all the answers. Each of them has a
half dozen relatives or friends he wishes to place in good
positions regardless of training or ability.”

This was graphically illustrated in some of the con-
struction work. Plans had been sent for several buildings
for machine shops and work began on one of the largest.
Its walls were thick, with bricks laid endwise and having
24 inch projections for supports. The gable end, one un-
broken wall, was 80 feet long, the width of the building
was 40 ft. As the work was begun Frank said, “The
Joists for the building are still growing up in Washington.”’

‘ The days passed an'd'the building remained in the
same shape, though the Joists and the corrugated iron for

outside the center of the

“Boys have had the runni i
! i ning of the busine
{Ee:bdlscharged and incompetent men put in thesif" p%;g:si
Just because they would bow and scrape. Good men do
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wall.

not

not do that. I had called their attention to the matter sey-
eral times. $50.00 would have saved the building.

There was the same lack of efficiency when the work-
men began to build the cars for the road. Quoting from a
letter Whi‘fh Frquk Kimball wrote to Boston we lcar;\
“The NznonAal’(«uy Machine shops are in operation, if
you can call it operation’. Why the Devil (1 won't take
it back nor apologize for it either) so many boys et
here to manage the mechanical department and other po-
sitions, is a conundrum

“There is not a mechanic at work on the
the old saw-filer, George Allen.

“Every good man is let out when it is found he knows
more than the foreman.

“The entire top of the car they are building has been
taken off three times and the material thrown away. Com-
petent management could have saved $100,000 in all the
work that has been done around here

“I would like to see the Union Pacific buy the Cali-
fornia Southern and continue the Utah Southern south
and meet the California Southern.”

At some time the road must have passed out of local
ownership for there is a later report, “Jay Gould making
progress on the Utah-Southerr Railroad.”

The proposed wharf which the Railroad Company was
to build was postponed several times but at last the mater-
ial and plans for the creosoting plant arrived. It was in
this tank that the piles for the wharf were to be treated
against the worm which circled the piles ‘between wind and

ater’.
il Frank wrote Mr. D. K. Horton in Boston. “‘Plans for
the creosoting plant were sent here and we followed them
exactly, but when the machinery came the great plates did
not fit. By forcing the bolts to the utmost we got them 1{1
place. Everything was ready but we had no vacuum gauge.

“One cargo of creosote was shipped and was used on
green lumber. I told Mr. Nickerson the work he had seen
in San Francisco was on dried piles but he insisted we use
the piles as they arrived. The oil penetrated the wood ngt‘
more than 4 of an inch. Due to the faulty vacuum t :i
creosote was soon used up. An effort was made to get dea
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On May 1, 1881 the railroad company had run their
first telegraph line between National City and San Diego.
Frank learned telegraphy at once, then, in anticipation of
future business. the San Diego Telephone Company ran a
line to National City. As there was no railroad office at
the time the line went to the Russ Lumber Company.
“Frank Kimball has the second phone and Dr. Risdon has
phone number 3.”

The first spike for the railroad was driven in National
City on July 22, 1881. Oct. 22, 1880

Work on the railroad had been awarded Lyons Bros.
who surprised the construction world by employing In-
dians; claiming them more conscientious than the Chinese
after they were once trained. Frank Kimball took exception
to this statement as being contrary to his finds in Chinese
caring for sheep, and for garden work.

Progress was recorded, ““Photographer Parker is busy
taking pictures of the building of the railroad. His little
wagon and the smell of chemicals follow the railroad
builders.” In San Diego Mr. Parker established another
“first’ when he advertised, “‘Souvenir pictures of the build-
ing of the railroad.”

By Sept. 18, 1881, “Tracks of the California Southern
have reached False Bay (Mission). The men are setting
mile posts as they go along.”

The route planned was from National City. through
San Diego, Old Town, Encinitas, San Luis Rey, Fallbrook,
Laguna, and Riverside. Fallbrook was the noon stop where
the train waited 15 minutes for dinner. This town being
in the heart of a rich agricultural district, the stop-over
station for the railroad, enioyed a period of prosperity.

In San Diego the authorities insisted on the railroad
building two stations, one on 22nd Street, the other on D
(Broadway) near the waterfront.

The surveyors passed through Temecula Canyon,
where Frank pleaded with Mr. Weaver to run the tracks
on the hillside instead of along the creek bed, but his advise
was disregarded. A woman rancher tried to show the
surveyors the water mark during rainy season, but they
laughed her warning away.

- In a conversation with Mr. Nickerson, Frank advo-
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cated building south from Needles, saying he was sy,
e oo, in some way, would bead off the Californi,
Southern. Frank also maintained the Southern PJcmd
would build a branch line from Needles to Mojave to con-
nect with-the Union Pacific. Mr. Nickerson said. “Kim
ball, you're a fool to think that. The Southern Pacific
will have enough of the desert without building bc[\\'s‘ur:
Needles and Mojave,”” and he laughed the matter away.
Every few w"ecks the officials mapped out the new
work. Thu'n the time came when the order went out, “‘from
the 116 mile post to the 128 mile post The 128 mile-post
was at Colton!
When the California Southern reached C
e C 2 “olt e
Southern Pacific wou]d not permit them to cros(;nthlg)‘:
tracks. The !ast rail was laid at Colton August 11, 1882
" Frank Kimball wrote to Mr. Wilbur, in Boston. **You
will (cmembe; that I said the Southern Pacific was perfectly
cpnscnousless in protecting what they thought were rhci}r
f.xgbts4 Mr. Nickerson approached the table and said
Kimball, you shan’t talk so of the Southern Pacific
people. We have ‘_ﬂways met them as gentlemen, both
§oc1ally and in business.”” Those words must have burned
into his heart as they did mine. i
“Every obstructi i e i
ik o [gre . ['rf ion possible has bg\n thrown into the
g alifornia Southern. Freight has been stole
and transported through other channels H
“‘Mr. Higgins shi :
! pped a carload of orange enve
and they were sidetracked until they spoiI::igLS ey
“Every carload 1 ic
San Diego)t via Colrgfx farrféghéalrinfaorrl;e'g é\htllon«ﬂ g
e Angéles. Fiei 1 1 outhern, goes to
A ght has to be paid to L.A i
to Colton where it can b B paid hadl
& e unloaded on the south side
13 Icgeé;;i dces not cross the S.P. tracks. side 28
e are i i
o iLn cfziuj{: aﬁ lelplhl.‘: and we find many of
iy . geles, Pasadena. San Gabriel and
“Mr. Nick is di
sliw. T Wh(f{;()izclli; d[spleﬁscd begause land sales are
kas been arrested by Mrg l\llr;cliee L o O
ety which wss beonght P rorson sending away machin-
carry out the letter of the
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Bond entered into with me. It was sent here in good faith
and taken away in bad faith and has upset everybody.
“How can the Land and Town expect to sell land
when the Railroad Company. composed of the same men
are, every day. taking away the appliances sent here as an
assurance they intend to carry out the spirit of the Bond?

“Boston knows so much but will not learn more.
There is no supervision over supplies. Some locomotive
parts have been shipped to the Mexican Central. Other
material has been stacked in the open yard. There is so
much neglect that 100 families have left National City
for fear the Boston folk have been beaten and run out of
the San Diego Bay area by the Southern Pacific: that Stan-
ford made Nickerson throw up his hands. We are now
pottled up and the cork driven in. We are the laughing
stock of the world for letting the Southern Pacific get away
with their game.

“California Southern passengers have been hauled over
the road beyond Colton by stage. A two hour ride to
connect with the Atlantic and Pacific.”

While the Southern Pacific was refusing to permit the
Calif. Southern to cross their tracks the northern interest
went still further: they built that branch line between
Needles and Mojave so passengers from the California
Southern, wishing to go east, could transfer to this branch
line and to the Union Pacific. “To New York by way of
Mojave, 3.347 miles; 6 days and 3 hours,” they adver-
tised.

Frank is sick, so sick, ‘“This worry and fret just ‘bust’
my stomach. Have had to lie down. Worry, worry, day
and night is doing what the first 25 years of my life
didn’'t do—Take me to the Great Community—and
then.”

After a long legal battle
granted permission to cross t
at Colton.

The Northern Railroad men continued to claim they
owned the controlling interest in the Atlantic and Pacific
Railroad, yet the president of the Atlantic % Pacific issued
a circular asking for subscriptions to stocks and bonds of

the California Southern, stating the new road with the
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he Southern Pacific tracks
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Atlantic & Pacific was 400
rhanNany other.
& fo‘:v;.hcl883, “C. P. Huntington is maki
credited w'rh‘(;,n.f"ol of the Atlantic and Plci[r'l'¥ whesond
k3 ‘rh qo.mg in very good condition, l'in“ Which g
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ean; far di it
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f:]:ss}t)_m I\II,J“OHJI City and rea
o st ;
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Southern Pacific.o [I({Tafl; 2[ . LV.IA s o changca toCtl}?e,
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il s ML 7 )
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Bk Y o= e A. B P. to come through C o Bocy
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b 3 rank writes to Mr. D Hort ) ioron
loc‘mgn :f w;]ersnon of the venture: '-‘Ther =
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. Mr. wante
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- COagy
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to build in the best place and Mr. Weaver was undecided
where the best place was until he bought some lots on 23rd
Street, right in front of Block 170 and his decision was
reached right away, much to everybody’s surprise.” Of
course Mr. Osgood went along with Mr. Weaver for ‘birds
of a feather etc.’

Frank was asked to oversee the construction of the
foundation. A Chinese, Woo San, took the job of
purning the brick. He was supposed to be an expert but
did a poor job and only a few were accepted. 39 cords of
wood thrown away,” writes Frank as another kiln was
started.

The foundation was completed and the carpenters and
s took over the work then, “With Mr. Osgood
d the work on the new hotel and found a miserable

plasterer

examine ;
job of plastering and some bad work by the carpenters.

The grounds of the new hotel, not yet named, were
landscaped. ‘“Water is being brought from a well on the
cast side of National. Ah Tee and Ab Tung at work on
the landscaping and on the cistern which is 16 feet deep
and 16 feet across.”

Frank in his diary writes, ““At the station with Mr.
Victor and met Mr. Bond, the hotel landlord, whom I
found to be in the last stages of consumption. The family
had had no breakfast so went to Mrs. Lambs and ordered
breakfast for six.”

Again Frank writes his protest to Mr. D. K. Horton
in Boston. “The new hotel, I mean hospital, is finished
and furnished beautifully. Mr. Bond is in the last stages of
consumption, cannot dress himself. Mr. Bond says he was
carried from his bed to the cars to come to National City.
He knows nothing of hotel management but says he will
depend on his friends. Of course it is exceedingly fortunate
to secure a Chief Clerk out of a clothing store, who will
work for his board and who says his only interest in Na-
tional City is to regain his health. ?

“The idea of opening a hotel with two funerals is
novel, if not new.

“T'here has been no advertising for the hotel, so the
railroad boys moved into the best suites and are paying
ridiculously low prices for room and board. All this time

16 el
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1882 “Enjoyed a railroad excursion up
and Sister with me. Had lunch in the
back from San Luis Rey to Encini-

On Feb. 22,
the line, Warren
caboose car. Sister came
tas in the engine.”

Frank lists his Encinitas property as 4,437 acres and
the value $50,000.

At National City’s 225 acre Terminal grounds, the
largest in the country, the work in the machine and car-
pentry shops seemed to be better organized. In June the
National City Record tells us the mechanics were “‘building

* A mail and express car have been completed.

good cars.’
Three new box cars have been turned out; one of them

a Postal Car.
They were of wood, as were all passenger coaches, and

extremely vulnerable to fire. “The U.S. Congress. after
investigating the tremendous loss of life on railroad lines:
820 last year, has ordered that there be no more stoves on
the trains. They must be heated by steam. Most of the
fatalities are due to the resulting holocaust when kerosine
lamps and stoves have set fire to wooden coaches.”

Frank Kimball had long been a subscriber to the
Scientific American and the Record often quoted the maga-
zine. Some few accidents occurred at the Terminal and
the Record referred to the Magazine when it said, “If fore-

t a little time

men of shops, also railroad men, would pu :
hat there are certain things

into surgery they would learn t
they could do in case of accident whereby they could save
lives. The Univ. of Pennsylvania is planning a series of

lectures on the subject.” 45
In the national picture the government was realizing

the vast acreage they had, so freely, given to the railroads
and voted for the return of all lands through which no
roads had been built prior to July 4, 1879, estimated at
35,000,000 acres. Among them were the lapsed land grants
of the Texas Pacific, around 1,000,000 acres, also certain
lands of the Atlantic @ Pacific, amounting to 1,000,000
acres. The total land grants had been between 90,000,-
000 and 110,000,000 acres. Some of it was worthless
land but much had been exploited for private gain.

Back in National City there were arguments as to
where the National City Terminal was to be located: was




it at the Station or was it when the train whistled? T},
Company quoted from Gunn's Annual Railroad Report

under “‘Terminals for Railroad Tvmins", “Train whistles
when it passes the terminus. Train stops at the extreme
terminus.”’

“Bosh", said Uncle Josh of the Record.

Frank Kimball had been acting as Sales Manager for
the ““Syndicate of Five” or “Land and Town" as it was
beginning to be called. He furnished his own office, took
prospects over the country in his own conveyance and paid
the postage on the replies he wrote to inquiries from in.
terested persons. There was no salary connected with this
job of selling his own property for the benefit of others.
He answered every letter in detail and with undiminished
enthusiasm. San Diego County never had a better ‘Booster’
than Frank Kimball. His slogan was “Bay and Climate”
and he described both beautifully.

He had asked repeatedly to be relieved of this work but
his request had been ignored. Then Mr. Victor was sent
from Boston. ‘Sister’ had been ‘worked out’ and had gone
to San Francisco to stay with friends, Capt. Coffin and
his wife, but Joe Sherman who had lived with the Kim-
Palls since the death of her father was caring for the house.
‘Mr. Victor arrived with his wife, two sons and a niece.
Brought them all home to stay for a few days. Told them
Jo would g'lways find something for us to eat and a good
cup of tea.

Mr. Victor knew nothing of the land, so used Frank’s
office, was furnished with money for advertising, all ex-

when he wished to show a larger group around the Ranch.
- Kimball Bros. invested in Bonds of the California
outhern, $10,000 worth! they came by express and
Frar}k mentioned, $6.50 due, express.”’
S 1t any wonder that Frank was beset wi i
W ith 7
SYiset(e.r OE ;ecen};'mg the bnews of the passing of hv;,sorerllsz;'
.0 ~ucY, he wrote back to her husband i i
grief at their loss then closed with, “I h e R
¢ 2 j ave spent
years of my life trying to make those [ corr?e nin t?cfn?:ig
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with happier and the result is unsatisfactory. 1 am con-
fronted, at every step, by ungrateful people but I look
pack and thank God I have lived and as far as I know, |
have done my best.

All these things had been going on while the crossing
controversy at Colton was being settled in the United
States Courts and when the California Southern won its
case and the road built out to meet the A. % P there was
much rejoicing. ‘Uncle ‘Josh’ the Record’s clever para-
graphe!' went up the line on an inspection tour and came
back elated as he wrote, “I can just feel the “Boom’’ com-
ing to National City.”" And then—

The rainfall during the winter of '83 - "84 had been
light until Feb. 28, "84 when heavy clouds brought a 20-
inch downpour in a few hours. The water, flowing off the
hard, dry earth did a tremendous amount of damage, and
the railroad suffered heavily. From San Luis Rey to Te-
mecula (40 miles south of San Bernardino) the line was a
total wreck.

“All the railroad men are up front, which means they
are at the Santa Margarita Ranch where the abandoned
train is lying, swamped in the muddy torrents of Santa
Margarita Creek. Destruction in the wildest sense, with
cdamage anywhere from $350,000 to $700.000.” the
Record reported.

When the train was caught in the rising flood waters
the passengers got out as best they could and, with the
help of near-by farmers, returned to their homes. It was
said the only man who stayed with the train was the Wells
Fargo agent. who had to resort to shooting gophers to
keep from starving. It was a tall tale that drew a laugh
during those discouraging days. ;

Quoting from the Record. “For a starter on repairs,
the Kimballs raised $250,000 and workmen were sent
cut from the shops. The Record reporter who went with
the crew described the scene, “The main lines are over
where the side lines should be and the sidc_lmc  just aren’t
there any more. Bridges are down. The big bridge at San
Luis Rey is hanging to the side of the surging river's wall.
All rails will have to be replaced. The men hope to com-
plete repairs by July.”
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Once again the County was without railroad conne,
tion but '“We can still reach Snn”Pmnaxm by boat, 482
miles; $15.00; or steerage, $6.00.

In National City the Sweetwater was “Booming™" v},
water reaching far up into the adjacent ranches. Parad;s,
valley was isolated. Before the storm was over 40 inch
of rain had fallen. Last of the rain was May 10.

It was not until January of 1885 that traffic .,
resumed and a route by-passing some of the inland townp
was adopted. The railroad went directly north to Sap
Juan Capistrano and, “The San Luis Rey station is now
called ‘Oceanside’ and Oceanside is the last movement i,
town development along the railroad.

“Soledad, where there have been indications of oj]
has become Sorrento.”

At the same time that the flood damage was being re
paired the California Southern tracks had crossed (he
Southern Pacific line at Colton, on through San Berdy,
as they called San Bernardino, and on to Waterman Junc-
tion.
~ Waterman Junction had been the scene of extensive

silver mining. California’s Governor Waterman had large
holdings in the area and with the advent of the railroad
the once small camp was destined to become an important
center.
A special train left National City to celebrate the com-

&!}:uon of our trans-continental railroad connection. At

‘aterman the ceremony took the form of filling in the
missing link of a chain that connected the two trains.

Of course there had to be some excitement on the re-
rtrlllirsrs]in[g”r:rhg]mrl}: Josh of the Record and his wife were
oy o (e me pulled out; having hired a buggy
o g ; of the surrounding country, they got lost

sed the train by a few moments,

On Feb. 26, 1885: ““The first ¢
. e s arload of e
lsj};ﬁzecdc ov]erl‘:jn(cji fro: this County was in gn }llkot?:r)i,tiecv;;
i€ car loaded with 432 cases or 14 tons of co b
]r;)mChxcagoA From then on large shipments ofmor?r?;gleesy
. ons, potatoes, salt, fish, shells, butter and wool wex"e'
mong the produce that left on the Overland Route: all of

e B i

which brought tragedy to the ship-owners who had been
reaping aI h.lrv:'l.}l ‘:n\:)mr \U.\l\lul \’u;'nmr‘:u,

As the roa ears completion Frank make:
tion: AOm ‘N(\v_ 9, 1885 I shall go to \':“v“'l); l\lj\‘:i n\‘{’»‘\\-\(
driven which connects the Calif. Southern and makes
jt the terminal Division of the A.T. and Santa Fe R R
An enterprise I began and completed.” The ceremony was
near Cajon Pass. 4

The S:yndicalr of Five were even then advocating
placing this new line on the books of the Santa Fe '

‘A departure from the Station to Station ticket was the
sample of a through ticket to parts east that was shown
in National City. Now we can purchase a through ticket to
the east via Waterman Junction."”

Then a bulletin was posted on the walls of the depot
“SPECIAL NOTICE to CALIFORNIA SOUTHERN
OFFICE: NATIONAL CITY-—On and after Januray
1, 1886, the station now known as Waterman Junction
will be called Barstow.” D. B. Robinson, General Mana
ger, Atlantic ¥ Pacific Railroad.”

‘‘National City begins to look like a railroad town,”
said the home town paper, “Trains arriving and departing
at all hours of the day and night. Noisy but Metropoli-
tan. Those who cannot accustom their nerves to the ac
tivity had better move to some quiet suburb up the Bay

In November came the official reception in “'Celebra-
tion of our trans-continental railroad when Steamers and
locomotives will shake hands.” The 18th was San Diego
Day with a grand procession on horse, afoot, speeches and
so forth. )

The following day, the 19th of November 1885 was
National City Day. The officials of the railroad and
guests from San Diego and other parts of the state were
welcomed with cheers and the band. After an inspection
of the Terminal the guests were taken to the ‘International
Hotel’ and enjoyed a wonderful dinner. Frank made entry,
“Paid 14 of dinner bill for 130 persons at our banquet

Mr. Alonzo Horton was quite content with his title
as “‘Father of San Diego’ and he, like others, was }n\'xsh
with his compliments, "“The biggest, little man in South
ern California,”” “‘Frank Kimball may be small in stature




but when he puts his shoulder to the wheel, it moves' -
“If there's a “'go’” in it he’ll make it go,”" and more in the
same vein. By now Frank Kimball knew most of these
compliments were but “‘puffs of air”.

Thomas Nickerson was the spokesman for the eve-
ning. All officials of the railroad and some appreciative
guests from San Diego were unstinted in their praise of the
Kimball Brothers and specifically, Frank Kimball. “A
sketch of San Diego County would be incomplete without
reference to the energy, tact and undying grit of the Kim-
ball Brothers. To Frank Kimball, San Diego City and
County owes a debt of gratitude for, to him, in a large
measure, can be attributed the success of San Diego’s
present railroad communication.”

The Bemoval of the Shops

On Aug. 11, 1883 Frank Kimball answered a letter
from Mr. Wilbur in Boston, “You said the enterprise has
“dragged”’. If it has dragged with you what can you think
of the drag we've had here. The corrugated iron for the
rcofs of all seven of our planned buildings has been
shipped to Mexico. Vast quantities of machinery have gone
to the same place. All the steel rails except just enough
to reach San Bernardino have gone which makes it look
as though the Calif. Southern has no intention of carrying
out its agreement to meet the Atlantic and Pacific

“From all reports the equipment was brought here to
meet the “spirit”” of the bond then taken away to be used
on the Sonora Railroad.”

Frank also wrote Mr. Wilbur, “Mr. S. H. Clark of
the Union Pacific told me that Mr. Nickerson had made a
proposition to sell the Calif. So. to Huntington and Stan-
ford but they would not pay the price that Nickerson
wanted.”

On Jan. 22, 1884 Frank makes entry in his diary
“Saw letter from Mr. Nickerson regarding the proposed
sale of the road to the Santa Fe".

Then came that terrible storm and an assessment to
meet the cost of repairs.

On April 22, 1885 Frank Kimball wrote to his
brother, Levi, “D.C. Reed says he has information from
2 reliable source that railroad shops, general offices. tracks
and all are to be taken away and put at 22nd St. in San
Diego. If so he is better informed than I am.” Frank could
not believe this rumor. Had he not been with Mr. Nicker-
son in his private car just a few weeks previous when that
official had said the end was not yet in sight for the
progress of National City?

When plans were formulated for ‘‘Railroad Day”
Frank asked to be excused from participating and Warren
Kimball was appointed in his place. Probably the whole
thing had the ring of insincerity to Frank Kimball as he
recalled the recent rumors.
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days previous to the celebration
m"e:bf;‘:he B)»'oa}r’d of Directors of the Californi, S
who were practically all Santa Fe men, ang a me
the Santa Fe was agreed upon. Frank, with his
vote, tried to circumvent the merger. He writes, -
to take the lands which I gave the Calif. So
acres, with other donations I secured for
together with lands I purchased for the ;
which I paid out for them about $130,000 ! o
3 years and return to them all the cost of the railroad.
This would have left ghe Syndicate in POssession f »
huge acreage of the National Ranch. These men who ¢
always complaining that they were not‘gemng sufficien;
return for their money refused Erank Klml?all S request
Then came the big celebration with jts SUpPposedj,
imentary speeches. 5
mm.glgzrntheycexzmony the railroad officials pre

a Meetjp,

Out}

Offeor,
uthern, 1o &
the COmpan.
Syndicnu .""
and sel] ;, .*

r sent ex-
pressed their eagerness to return hqme. As the Calif, South.
ern had reached its connection with the & 8 P. ang as

had complied with the general terms of the agre
:E:yRaﬂmad l::ﬂ‘icials asked Frank and Warren K
to make full conveyance.

This touched a responsive chord in Frank Kimball’s
soul when they said they wanted to go home. How wel]
they knew Frank Kimball and his love for ‘the Old Home-
tead’.

ement,
imbal|

S

Frank writes, “Everything seemed so fair and in such

good faith that we made full conveyance and closed the
matter up,”

At once the;

Te was a change in the policy of the rajl-
road in regard to the handli i

B. Strong, presi-
dent of the A.T. & S.F., who had [eft San Diego on the
12th. The letter was a protest against the proposition to
land the freight received by sea, and destined for distriby-

upon by the Kimballs
went into detail, and
assessments, facts and
intention of the offi-
make Nationa] City

ifi i e er: yste Trans-
o fic Terminal of the Southe a Systam' of
the 'P;C(la; railroads,” according to Circular No. 1 .
iR ular No. 2 was by order of the Board of Direc-
C“cder Resolution, to raise $765,000 to complete the
sEE l'mn with the cross country ra“ro:‘_d» and to vnmv\de
gt shops and other important facilities at National
m‘aCh"gircular No. 3 ordered an assessment to extend the
C‘tY'f to deeper water and to erect suitable sheds ar_\d
wghar space for the protection of freight: to comp\ctg its
stor;gi:‘e Fs’hops and to erect freight and passenger stations
3t National City: $417,000 was asked. ik
A k closed his letter by stating, I behgve that a
Lo oration like that over which you preside, would
greatf corapmoment think of making any proposition to x.hc
a0t orf San Diego which would change the :\grcurvmv{lfr
City 3 into between the parties first named and_m\.h :
;me:sing I have donated the bulk of my Mcds mm;nf:r:&d
e erprise  wholl rojecte and ca
e tlc)) 3:1 :QTEK'{P[H:“\; :SO n{s rf‘urthcr correspondence
;)hroue%: F‘:ankyKimbali and Mr. Strong though he was
etw 2 A 4
i nal City again. i &
25 SEl"nl'l:: ?‘tarll\fia%o Town Co. took over most of the land
ilroad. 2 y .
o ble at the International Hotel. ‘\hn_ageru
i il San Diego are filled to over-flow
e ol e \1‘"" closed, ““There have been 'SQ
ing and the Iptc;nauona |s‘ o i o ikl i
more applications for a lease S k. Wilber.
5 tion or imposition’’, Frank write o s i
g has suffered thousands o ar A
‘“Land and Tovyn e h e u_rlght 0
Why in—doesn’t zomeom thing done? Get Mr. Sibley and
i me! :
mething or order somef o
g Sohim Ll gl h the whole railroad
urgeank was getting dlsgustci \l&rg lé kHorton sold 100
: 1ling his stock. o K
ffair, and began sell 3 b
ah res for me, $12.50 per share. o ki i B
= It came as a surprise to most %cop Diego. Injunctions
intendent’s Office was moved t1Obu:;n as the Record sa\g‘
inst the remova , as, S ctand
re served agains : e Tikeirone 4
y%h o) wete swept as,‘ L’nal leaves National
b '([zy ill be a cold day when the Term1
ut it w

ity.”
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The paper refused to give ground to some San Diegans
who declared the whole administrative set-up of the Caljf.
So. would soon be in San Diego.

“Fight, neighbor, fight

Fight on if you will,

The Headquarters are in National still.
In the fight do not pull your props

For National City still has the shops.”

The Superintendent’s Office had been under the dir
tion of “J. M. Victor with 10 men in his office: 4 men
in the Ticket Division, 5 men in the Cashier's Office, 8
men in the local Auditor's Office and Agent Beach, in
charge of communications. employed 2 men,"’

The town had hardly adjusted itself to the remov
the Superintendent's Office when a special car of high
officials arrived and looked over the railroad properties.
They said it was a “‘health and pleasure trip”. In a couple

of weeks another inspection was made and the headquarters
office was moved to Colton.

ec-

al of

Colton, believing it was in the daw
prosperity as a railroad town, boomed.
plant was set up, buildings constructed and stre

n of a period of
A large fire-brick
et improve-
shop there.
ns as to the
replied on Jan. 7, ’86,
ps at Colton. Is it any reason to sup-
3 their large machine shops from this
Bay? It is almost absurd to discuss such a probability until
we have something more definite.”

At the height of its “Boom,” Colton received word
the headquarters office was to be transferred to San Ber-
nardino. “The Record sent word to Colton, “Our sym-
pathy to Colton. The ways of a railroad corporation are
dark and very uncertain. Mr, Dilley, former principal of
the Nanona! City Schools, has been appointed Assistant
store keeper in the Calif. So. office at San Bernardino.”

The rumor of the removal of the shops persisted but
were denied by the company, “The new shops built at
Colton and San Bernardino are just additions.”

e B

ments made. for the railroad had built a repair

The San Diego Sun, beseiged with questio
future status of our Bay area,
“There are repair sho;
pose they will move

: ion did the people of the Bay area put
Whaf lpj:;}:{cﬁ?}r[(}))lz Califmr?i; 2outhern train, which
on this e regl;lar as clock work, came in late yesterday.
AIwaTS, a: will have to limp back to San Bcrnvardino
The ﬂ:,gel\: machinery has been installed which will care
wherf,e repairs required.”’ 2
i April of 1887 another group of inspectors came to
}n lpCity and stated they were consolidating various
Nanomd their offices, under one system. A :
guets: 2}I:'ls brings in the financial crisis of 1887 which had
-I; éing the country for several years. It was not called
be‘en - jon’: that was to come in 1893, but a recession.
? dcpresfile a s'tudy of this period when writing my father’s
(s lgr::‘:lao Pioneer history. Depressions are caused by the
" roduction of some article. This time it was the over-
ove:i-pction of railroads and inflated land values that
i ‘:i a tightening of money. Railroads had been built
causer than goods were produced to make freighting a
;ﬁ;itable business and every railroad compap\" made [l‘w
effort to entice what little passenger and freight b}:l;sxrr!\s%
there was, to patronage their lm_c_. In Colornc%o ltdLﬂ atr;
between Denver and Pueble was 75¢, and you uziu ?otl >
Chicago for $5.00. \\Thcn the smaller rmlr(?a 15-011 1;
country had been elimma[c'd. or nbsorbeﬁd }v\ f( 1:1 ‘rg‘;[
companies and liquidated, :i( }mcnmc }JII\RSL o og e
s siness improved, for a while. 3
dog'i‘;}e]e%ttzgison. To?mka © Santa Fe had C\'ld\?ﬂf‘\' h?d
their assets strained during this period. and were consoli-
i ir interests. ) : 3
danr—lrghéhefé;clord refrained from any mention of actn‘nf}'
around the shops, but there were a number of annnu(rjn;;r
ments in the San Diego Union; ““Another freight ]\\AB ,“
machinery came through town on its way to illm l\r—
nardino.” San Diego was suffering more. hnar_um 1\, H.J.S
National City. Many .of the railroad cmployu:s h'Ml ‘m_;:\: :
having heard the previous rumor of the change of the shop
Diego. .
£ Sjll'nhe pa%)er recalled the time when Coqgrcss rctuscg m
give further aid to the Texas Pacm( 4wh1ch would . 1n
secured for the Bay area that railroad, ms[e_:}d of the u)(-
ing interest of the California Southern. “Had Congress
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xas Pacific Aid Bill, the pages of the Unio,,
would not bear to the reader the mel‘lncholy narrative of
ruin which occupies this space to-day.”" (July 27, 1887
Piece by piece the shops were moved, aqd the employ

ees went with them, “‘One year ago (I arch '86) the entire
pay roll of the California Southern figured more than
$20,000 a month. Now $4000 will pay for everyonc

employed out from this terminal.”’ 3
Even to the last there were those who believed the

situation in the terminal was only temporary. “The re-
cently removed machinery and men from the shops of the
Calif. So. will shortly be returned to their old quarters.
They were taken to San Bernardino but not unloaded.””
But the terminal was gone, and with it the hopes that the
railroad would bring a position of exceptional importance
to the Bay area.

San Diego was to receive another blow. When the
last shipment of machinery left National City the super-
intendent’s office was transferred to Los Angeles.

As late as Oct. 31, 1889 Railroad officials came on
another ‘inspection tour’. They said they were thinking of
instituting a larger system of coal bunkers. Yes, ‘Bunk’ers.
As it was they were using the wharf very little, now that

Pittsburg was supplying steel, and coal was brought to
San Bernardino from the Utah coal fields.

The removal of the shops had a far-reaching effect;
over in Australia many of the sailing vessels that had plied
cfg; Sfé:?o;)nn I{Ih’ar Ionlg 80-day journey to America, bringing

s ewcastle, were now lying idly at anchor.
Spmc“:s,C;E}()JSOfllpgSplant. was kept running until the

— fOar mY' an Diego was completed; then it was
prcsy r service, was dismantled and shipped to St.
routlhg (E:::{C}?gxeatS%urhem had been running on two
et o 3/ anta Ana and an alternate route to
through Temecula Cafxm mla}r;d. In surveying the route
e gi\)/,:nvtht e eastern engineers refused

isms of California rivers, r/l\s tehm fm regacd to i G
through th - 415 there was no water flowing

81 the canyon at the time the i

Frank Kimball, and that of y ignored the advice of
an old-timer when she showed

passed the Te
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the water line during flood years. In "88 the low

m
;:’ied tracks th{OUgh the cut were washed away. They were
rep‘-li“d but in ‘91 another flood brought complete de-
struction

The Record. speaking of Temecula Canyon said, “Te-
mecula Canyon! That was the most unkind cut of all.”
The inland route was d\scardc_dv

National City and San Diego were now on a branch
line from Los Angeles. Theirvm'\lmad. bought, paid for,
put never kept. was a thing of the past when viewed as a
Pacific Coast Terminal.

Every Saturday morning a little lady used to pass my
home, laden with choice flowers for a ward in the Navy
Hospital where few visitors were allowed: the basket cases
of World War I

She was Mrs. Edmund Thelen, who, with her husband
and sons, had come to National City in the 80’s and de-
veloped “El Rancho Valencia,” another National City
showplace. In recent years a son Max, a San Francisco
lawyer, has made many contributions to our National City
library, in memory of his parents.

One morning Mrs. Thelen and I went to town to-
gether, and were talking of the growth of National City
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